Suresh Surana & Associates LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of Saatvik Solar Industries Private Limited (formerly known as S Cleantech
Renewable Private Limited)

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Special Purpose Interim Ind AS Financial Statements of Saatvik
Solar Industries Private Limited (formerly known as S Cleantech Renewable Private Limited) (‘the
Company’), which comprises the Special Purpose Balance Sheet as at December 31, 2024 and the
Special Purpose Statement of Profit and Loss, including Other Comprehensive Income, the Special
Purpose Cash Flow Statement and the Special Purpose Statement of Changes in Equity for the nine
months period ended December 31, 2024, and a summary of material accounting policies and other
explanatory information. These Special Purpose Interim Ind AS Financial Statements are prepared
solely for the purpose of preparation of Restated Financial Information of Saatvik Green Energy
Limited (formerly known as Saatvik Green Energy Private Limited) (‘the Parent Company’) to be
included in the Draft Red Herring Prospectus (the ‘DRHP’), Red Herring Prospectus (the ‘RHP’) and
Prospectus (the * Prospectus’) proposed to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(‘SEBI'), BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (collectively, the ‘Stock
Exchanges’) and the Registrar of Companies, Delhi and Haryana (‘ROC’) in connection with the
proposed initial public offer of equity shares of the Parent Company (the 'Offering’).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Special Purpose Interim Ind AS Financial Statements give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principle generally accepted in India including the Indian Accounting Standard
(Ind AS) 34 specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended of the state of affairs of the Company as at December 31, 2024,
its statement of profit and loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes
in equity for the nine months period ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Special Purpose Interim Ind AS Financial Statements in accordance
with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013
as amended. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Special Purpose Interim Ind AS Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the Special Purpose Interim Ind AS Financial Statements and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained.is_sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on




Management’s Responsibility for the Special Purpose Interim Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of Special
Purpose Interim Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the
Company in accordance with the basis of preparation specified in Note 2.1 to the Special Purpose
Interim Ind AS Financial Statements. The Board of Directors are also responsible for maintenance of
adequate accounting records for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial control that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the Special Purpose Interim Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Special Purpose Interim Ind AS Financial Statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Special Purpose Interim Ind AS Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Special Purpose Interim Ind AS
Financial Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Special Purpose Interim Ind AS Financial
Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Special Purpose Interim Ind AS
Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a materi Simty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related di Special Purpose Interim Ind AS Financial
Statements or, if such disclosureg to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are™




based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events

or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Special Purpose Interim Ind AS
Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Special Purpose Interim Ind AS
Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner as described
in its basis of preparation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Other Matters

Corresponding figures for the period April 08, 2023 to December 31, 2023 and for the period April 08,
2023 to March 31, 2024, have been audited by Predecessor Auditor, whose reports thereon had been
furnished to us by the management of the Company, wherein they have expressed an unmodified
opinion vide their audit reports dated February 25, 2025 and September 28, 2024, on the Financial
Statements of the Company for the periods ended December 31, 2023 and March 31, 2024
respectively.

Our opinion on the Special Purpose Interim Ind AS Financial Statements is not modified in respect of
the above matter.

Restriction on use

This report is intended solely for the information of the Company, its Parent Company and their
respective board of directors, in connection with filing of DRHP, RHP and Prospectus for the
proposed Initial Public Offer (IPO) of equity shares of the Parent Company and should not be used,
referred to or distributed for any other purpose or to any other party without our prior written consent.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than
the Company, its Parent Company and their respective board of directors, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinion we have formed. Our report should not be used by any other person or for
any other purpose. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for any
other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come
without our prior consent in writing.

For Suresh Surana & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 121750W/W100010

&B\"?wb—'

Kapil Kedar

Partner

Membership No. 094902

UDIN: 2504 koo™ o IVNTE

Place: Gurugram
Dated: February 25, 2025



Saatvik Solar Industries Private Limited (formerly known as $ Cleantach Renewable Private Limited)
CIN : U43222CH2023PTC044976

Special Purpose Interim Balance sheet as at December 31, 2024

[All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

Asat As at

ieul N i
Particulars ke Na December 31, 2024 March 31, 2024

ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets

{a) Property, plant and equipment 3 1,763.20 £10.06
{b) Intangibles 4 134
(¢) Capital work in progress 5 358.54 31531
(d) Right-of-use assets 6 155.14 -
(e) Financial as:=ts
(i) Other financial asiets 11 2024 300
{f) Other non current assats 12 233.19 12582
(g) Deferrad tax assat (net) 31 6.53 2288
Total non-current assets 2,53318 1,091.07
[2) Current assets
(@) Inventaries 7 2,428.70 63.72
(b) Financial 23:2ts
{i) Trade receivables 8 21835 3180
[ii} Cash and cash equivalents S 132 881
{iii} Bank balances {Other than cash and cash equivalents) 10 - 6.10
(iv) Cther financial 2ssets 11 153,78 45,25
{c) Other current 21sets 12 825.54 75.27
(d) Current tax assets{net) 20 - 0.20
Tatal current assets 4,243.70 230.95
Total assets 6,781 88 1,322.02

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

(1) EQUITY
(a) Equity share capital 13 0.10
(b) Other equity 14 15.93
Total equity 17.03
(2) LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabiiities

(i} Borrowings 15 1,101.51 462.25

(i) Leas= liabiiities 6 12181 -
(b) Frovisions 18 103 -
() Other nun-current liabilities 21 246.54 164.77
Total non-current liahilities 1,482.89 634.02
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 15 1,545.82 464.45

(i) L=aze liahilitias 6 28.92 -

{iii) Trade payables 16

- Tutal outstanding dues of micre enterpiises and small enterpsizes 80.08 -
- Total outstanding dues of creditors sther than micrs enterprises and small enterprises 1,665.51 104.40

(iv) Other financial liabilities 17 211.92 98.76
(b) Provisians 18 202 -
{c) Contract liahilitias 19 724.27 -
[d) Current tax liabiiities{net) 20 5234 -
(e) Other current liabiiities A 45.49 3.36
Total current liabilities 4,413.37 670.97
Total liabilities : 5,896.26 1,304.99
Total equity and liabilities 6,781.88 1,322.02

summary of material ac: ing policias 2
The nistes refarrad to above form an integral part of the Standatone Financial Statements 3-43

As per our report of aven date attached

For Suresh Surana & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Saatvik Solar Industries Private Limited (formerly known as § Cleantech
Firm’s Reg. No.: 121750W / W100010

Loblioed =—

Kapil Kedar —
Partner
Membership No.: 094302

Plzce: Gurugram
Dale: February 25, 20125

Place: Gurugram Plac=: Gurugram
Date. Febiruary 25, 2015 Date: February 25,



Saatvik Solar Industries Private Limited (formerly known as § Cleantech Renewable Private Limited)

CIN : U43222CH2023PTC044976

Special Purpose Interim Statement of Profit and Loss for pariod ended December 31, 2024

(All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

Note For period ended For the period from
Particulars No. December 31, 2024 April 08, 2023 to
December 31, 2023
(1) Income
(a) Revenue from operations 22 £,097.26 -
(b) Other income 23 8.46 0.48
Total income 6,106.72 0.48
(2) Expenses
(a) Cost of materials 24 4533133 -
(b) Purchazs of Stock-in-Trade 25 64.45 -
{c) Changes In inventories of finished goods & stock in trade 26 (322.38) -
(d) Employse benefits 2apense 27 63.27 -
(&) Finance costs 28 12366 6.12
(f) Depraciation and amortization expznse 29 102,77 -
(g) Other expenzes 30 301.47 0.55
Total expenses 5,056.58 6.67
(3) Profit/{Loss) before tax (1-2) 1,050.14 (6.19)
(4) Tax expense:
(i) Current tax 31 165.01 -
(i) Defarred tax 31 15.28 -
Total tax expense 181.39 -
{5) Profit/(Loss) for the period (3-4) £68.75 (6.19)
(6) Other comprehensive income/(loss) 32
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent years:
- Remeazurement of net defined benefit liability {0 19) -
- Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 0.03 -
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) (0.16) s
(7) Total comprehensive income/(lass) for the period (after tax) {5+6) 858.59 (6.19)
(8) Earnings per equity share (face value of T10/- each)
(a) Basicand diluted EPS a3 86,858.83 (619.38)
Surnmary of material accounting policies 2
The riotes referred to abeve form an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements 3-43

As per our report of even date attached

For Suresh Surana & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Reg. No : 121750W / W100010
o

Qoo
—_—
Kapil Kedar

Partner
Membership No.: 024502

Plare: Gurugram
Date: February 25, 2015

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Saatvik Solar Industries Private Limited ([prmerly known as 5
Cleantech Renewable Private Limited)

Director
DIN: 7282824

Place: Gurugram
Diate. February 25, 202

Place: Gurugram
Date; February 25, 2225



Saatvik Solar Industries Private Limited {formerly known as § Cleantech Renewable Private Limited)

CIN : U43222CH2023PTC044976

Special Purpose Interim Statement of Cash Flow for period ended December 31, 2024

{All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

For period ended

For the period from

Particulars i April 08, 2023 to
December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit/{Loss) before tax 1,050.14 (6.19)
Adjustments for : :
Interest income (4.94) (0.48)
Incorne from government grant (4.52) =
Finance cost 12266 6.12
Depreciation and amortization expense 81es -
Depreriation on right of use assat 2089 -
Provision for warranty and repiacement 183 -
Unrealizad foreign currency exchange gain/loss 49.15 -
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 1,318.09 (0.55)
Decreasa/(Increasa) in inventories (2,372.98) -
(increase) in trade receivables (724.75) -
seflincrease) in other financial 2s32ts (9.34) (2.95)
- increase) in other current zsiets (750.27) (118 88)
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables 1,602.04 0.30
Increase/{Decreaze) in other current financial liabifities 9.21 {2.44)
Incraase/(decraase) in contract lial 724.27 -
Increass/(decreasa) in other current liabilities 12841 0.7
Increase/{Decraaze) in provisions 5.05 -
Cash generated from/(used in) operations (130.27) (123.85)
Income taxes paid (Inclusive of TDS and TCS) {net) (71.25) -
Net cash generated from/{used in) operating activities {201.52) (123.85)
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Interest received on fixed deposit 112 c.0o8
stments In fixed deposits (11#2.20) (48 51)
Acquisition of right of use zesat (0 38) -
Purchase of property, plant and equigment and other intangible 2::ets (including CWIP, capital advances {1,305.72) (140.51)
and caoital craditors)
Net cash (used in) Investing activities (1,423.16) (186.94)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
ccesds from issue of aquity shares - 0.10
oceeds from borrawings 1,762.59 34183
Repayment of barrowings (47.95) -
Interast paid on borrowings (75.09 -
Repayment of lease liabilities (Refer notz ) (22.36) =
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities 1,617.19 341.93
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C) (7.49) 31.14
Cash and cash equivalents at Lhe begirning of the periad 2.81 -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the pariad 1.32 31.14
Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of following
Cash on hand 0.18 0.10
Cheque in hand 033
Balance with banks - in current accounts 0.20 31.04
1.32 31.14
Ssummary of material accounting policies
The notas referred to above farm an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements 3-43
As per our report of even dale attached
For Suresh Surana & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Saatyik Solar Industries Private Limited (formerly known as §

Renewahle Private Limited)

T

Firm’s Reg. No.: 121750W / W100010
4

Lopihio ed s

Kapil Kedar Ne Garg
Partner Dir=ctor
Membership No: 054202 DIN:72z2:524

Place: Gurugram
Dsta: February 25, 2025 Date: February 25, 2025

Place: Gurugram
Date: February 25, 2025




Saatvik Sofar Industries Private Limitad (formerly known as § Cleantech Renewable Private Limited)
CIN ; U43222(H2023PTC044976

Special Purpose Interim Statement of Changes in Equity for period ended December 31, 2024

{All amounts are in INR millions, uniess otherwise stated)

A. Equity Share Capital (Refer Note 13)
Equity Share of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up.

Particulars No. of Sharas Amount

As at April 8, 2023 10,000 0.10
lssue of aquity shares during the period - -
As at March 31, 2024 10,000 0.10
Issue of equity shares during the periad - =
As at December 31, 2024 10,000 0.10

w

. Other equity (Refer Note 14)

Reserves and surplus

Particulars " = Total
Retained earnings
As at April 8, 2023 - -
Frofit / {Loss) for the pericd 1593 15.83
Other comprehensive income/ (Loss) - -
As at March 31, 2024 16.93 1693
Profit / [Loss) for the periad 252875 858,
Other comprehensive income/ (Lozs) (0 16) (0.16)
As at December 31, 2024 885.52 885.52
Surmmary of material accounting policies 1
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements 3-43
As per our report of even date attached
For Suresh Surana & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Charterad Accountants Saatvik Solar Industries Private Limited (formerly known as §
Firm’s Reg. No.: 121750W / W100010 Cleantech Renewable Private Limited)
t
Kapil Kedar ~ ° N Garg
Partrer Directar
Membership No.: 084902 DIN: 7282824
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurigram Place: Gurugraim
Date: February 25, 2015 Date: February 25, 2025 Date: February 25, 2025




Saatvik Solar Industries Private Limited (formerly known as S Cleantech Renewable Private Limited)
(CIN: U43222CH2023PTC044976)

Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Financial Statements for period ended December 31, 2024

(All amounts in INR Million, unless otherwise stated)

1. Corporate Information

The Special purpose financial statements comprise financial statements of Saatvik Solar Industries Private Limited
(formerly known as S Cleantech Renewable Private Limited) Private Limited ("the Company"), (CIN:
U43222CH2023PTC044976) for the period from April 01, 2024 to December 31, 2024. The Company is a private limited
company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies, 2013.

The company was incorporated on April 8, 2023. The registered office of the Company is located at 550, Sector 8,
Chandigarh, India.

During the period, the Company has changed its name from S Cleantech Renewable Private Limited to Saatvik Solar
Industries Private Limited w.e.f April 29, 2024.

The Company is principally engaged in the manufacturing of Solar Photovoltaic Modules. The Company has
manufacturing facility in Ambala (Haryana) which began its commercial production in March 2024.

The Special purpose financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on
February 25, 2025.

2. _ Material accounting policies
2.1 Statement of compliance and basis of preparation

The Special Purpose Interim Financial Statements of the Company which comprise the Special Purpose Interim Balance
Sheet as at 31 December 2024, the Special Purpose Interim Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), the Special Purpose Interim Statement of Changes in Equity and the Special Purpose Interim
Statement of Cash Flows for the nine months period then ended, and notes to the financial statements including a
summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “ Special
Purpose Interim Financial Statements”, “Financial Statements”), have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”, specified under section 133 of the Act and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. These Special Purpose Interim Financial Statements have been
prepared by the management, for the purpose of their inclusions in the Restated Financial Statements prepared by
the Company in connection with the Draft Red Herring Prospectus (“DRHP”), Red Herring Prospectus {“RHP”) and
prospectus (Prospectus) for the proposed Initial Public Offer (IPO) of equity shares of the Company.

The Special Purpose Interim Financial Statements have been approved by the Board of Directors on February 25, 2025.
The preparation of Financial Statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and the disclosed amount of contingent
liabilities.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities
which have been measured at fair value or revalued amount:




Saatvik Solar Industries Private Limited (formerly known as S Cleantech Renewable Private Limited)
(CIN: U43222CH2023PTC044376) .

Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Financial Statements for period ended December 31, 2024

(All amounts in INR Million, unless otherwise stated)

(a) Derivative financial instruments, and
(b) Certain notes financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments)

The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest millions (INR 000,000), except
when otherwise indicated.

The Company has prepared its financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as a going concern.
2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
{a) Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification.

An asset is current when it is:

» Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.

= Held primarily for the purpose of trading.

* Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

* Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

" |tis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle.

= [tis held primarily for the purpose of trading.

= |tis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

* There is no unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets/liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
The Company has identified twelve months period as its operating cycle.

(b) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-
term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives.
Likewise, when a major inspection is_performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and




Saatvik Solar Industries Private Limited (formerly known as S Cleantech Renewable Private Limited)
{(CIN: U43222CH2023PTC044976)

Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Financial Statements for period ended December 31, 2024

{All amounts in INR Million, unless otherwise stated)

equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation is provided on a pro rata basis on the straight-line method over the useful lives of assets, which is as

stated in Schedule Il of the Companies Act 2013 or based on technical evaluation made by the Company. The
Management’s estimates of the useful lives for various categories of items of Property, Plantand Equipment are given

below:

Assets Useful Life
Computers & server 3-6years
Electrical Installations and Equipment 10 years
Factory Building 30 years
Furniture and Fittings 5 years
Office Equipment 5 years
Plant and Machinery 5-15years
Laboratory Equipment 5 years
Intangible Assets 3—-5years

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized, is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

The useful lives of the assets specified under the Schedule Il are based on their single shift working. However, where
the company estimated the useful life of an assets on single shift basis at the beginning of the period but uses the
assets on double or triple shift during the period, then the depreciation expense is increased by 50 or 100 percent as
the case may be for that period.

(c) Capital work in progress

Cost of material, erection charges and other expenses incurred for assets in the course of construction are capitalised
in the assets under Capital work in progress net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. At the point when an asset is
operating at management’s intended use, the cost of construction is transferred to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment and depreciation commences.




Saatvik Solar Industries Private Limited (formerly known as S Cleantech Renewable Private Limited)
(CIN: U43222CH2023PTC044976)

Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Financial Statements for period ended December 31, 2024

(All amounts in INR Million, unless otherwise stated)

(d) Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is or contains a lease. That is, if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Company recognizes lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(i) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognized and initial direct costs incurred, if any. Right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of
the assets.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in note (e) Impairment of non-
financial assets.

(ii) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of
lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for
the lease payments made.

(iii) Short-term leases

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option). Lease payments on short-term leases are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.




Saatvik Solar Industries Private Limited (formerly known as S Cleantech Renewable Private Limited)
(CIN: U43222CH2023PTC044976)

Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Financial Statements for period ended December 31, 2024

(All amounts in INR Million, unless otherwise stated)

(e) Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

(i) Raw materials: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out (FIFQ) basis.

(ii) Finished goods and work in progress: Cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity excluding borrowing costs. Cost is determined on
first in, first out (FIFO) basis.

(iii) Traded goods: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out (FIFO) basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(f) Revenue from contract with customers

The Company earns revenue primarily from sale of products (comprise of manufacture and sale of solar photovoltaic
modules)

Revenue from contract with customers is recognized when control of a product or service is transferred to a customer
at an amount which reflects the consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those
products and services, and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Company has generally
concluded that it is principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the goods or services before
transferring them to the customer.

(i) Sale of products

Revenue from sale of products is recognised at a point in time when control of the product is transferred to the
customer, generally at on delivery of the goods to the customer or the carrier at the factory gate, as agreed in the
contract.

Revenue is adjusted for variable consideration such as discounts, rebates, refunds or other similar items in a contract
when they are highly probable to be provided. The amount of revenue excludes any amount collected on behalf of
third parties.

In revenue arrangements with multiple performance obligations, the Company accounts for individual products and
services separately if they are distinct — i.e. if a product or service is separately identifiable from other items in the
arrangement and if a customer can benefit from it. The consideration is allocated between separate products and
services in the arrangement based on their stand-alone selling prices.
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(if) Variable consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount of consideration to
which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated
at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

(iii) Warranty obligations

The Company typically provides warranties for general repairs of defects that existed at the time of sale, as required
by law. These assurance-type warranties are accounted for under Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets. Refer to the accounting policy on warranty provisions in Note (m).

(iv) Refund liabilities

A refund liability is recognised for the obligation to refund some or all of the consideration received (or receivable)
from the customer. The Company’s refund liabilities arise from customers’ right of return and volume rebates. The
Company updates its estimates of refund liabilities at the end of each reporting period.

(v) Contract balances
a. Contract assets

A contract asset is initially recognised for revenue earned from EPC services because the receipt of consideration is
conditional on acceptance from the customer. Upon acceptance by the customer, the amount recognised as contract
assets is reclassified to trade receivables.

Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment. Refer to accounting policies on impairment of financial assets
in section (I) Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

b. Trade receivables

A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required
before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in section (I) Financial
instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

c. Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer
before the Company transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
Company performs under the act (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the customer).
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(g) Employee benefits
(i) Short term benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages, salaries and annual leaves in the period
the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that
service. Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount
of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

(i) Other long-term employee benefits

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term
employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the reporting date. Actuarial gains/losses are
immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet as the entity does not have an unconditional
right to defer the settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

(h) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

l. Financial assets
a) Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost and fair value through
profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that
do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient, the
Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Company has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under
Ind AS 115.

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash
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flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held within
a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company
commits to purchase or sell the asset.

b) Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two categories:
®  Financial asset at amortised cost
»  Equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

c) Financial assets at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

= the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows; and

= the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit
or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. The Company’s financial assets at
amortised cost includes trade receivables, and loan to related parties and security deposits.

d) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCI. This election is made on an
investment-by-investment basis.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCl to Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or
loss within equity.

e) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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This category includes derivative instruments and investment in quoted mutual funds.

f) Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is

primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Company’s Restated balance sheet) when:

» The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

»  The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and
either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or {b) the Company has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.

g) Impairment of financial assets

Further disclosures relating to impairment of financial assets are also provided in the Note (h) - Trade receivables and
contract assets.

The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for trade receivables and contract assets. ECLs
are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate.

The Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Company does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Company has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 45 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that thé Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Company. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

h) Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition,
no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities.
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1. Financial liabilities
a) Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts
and derivative financial instruments.

b) Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:
=  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

= Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

c) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near
term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated
as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied.

d) Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Loans and borrowings)

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. This
category generally applies to borrowings.
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e) Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. ‘

111 Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

V. Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

V. Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Restated balance sheet if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

(i) Foreign currencies

(i) Functional and presentation currency

The Company’s Financial Statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s functional currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at functional currency spot rates at the date
the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Company uses average rate if the

average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates
of exchange at the reporting date.
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Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in the Statement of profit
or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

In determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense, or income (or part of
it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to advance consideration, the date
of the transaction is the date on which the Company initially recognizes the non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the advance consideration.

If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Company determines the transaction date for each payment
or receipt of advance consideration.

(i) Taxes
Tax expense for the period comprises current tax and deferred tax.
a) Current tax (including tax for earlier years)

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable
income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (in other
comprehensive income). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction in OCI.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulations are subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept
an uncertain tax treatment. The Company shall reflect the effect of uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment by
using either most likely method or expected value method, depending on which method predicts better resolution of
the treatment.

b) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the Balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

(i) Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:
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(a) When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences;

(b) In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

(ii) Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

(a) When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences;

(b) In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets
are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

In assessing the recoverability of deferred tax assets, the Company relies on the same forecast assumptions used
elsewhere in the financial statements and in other management reports, which, among other things, reflect the
potential impact of climate-related development on the business, such as increased cost of production as a result of
measures to reduce carbon emission.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset
is realised, or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (in other
comprehensive income). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction in OCI.
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(iii) Offsetting of Deferred tax assets and liabilities

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity which intends either to settle
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

(k) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

(i) General criterion for provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Company will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under
an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

(ii) Provision for warranties

The Company gives a warranty to its customers for 25 years on solar modules designed, manufactured and supplied
by the Company. In order to meet the expected outflow of resources against future warranty claims, the Company
makes a provision for warranty. This provision for warranty represents the expected future outflow of resources
against claims for performance shortfall on account of manufacturing deficiencies over the assured warranty life.

(iii) Contingent liabilities

The Company does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the Financial Statements as per
requirements of Ind AS 37.

(iv) Contingent assets

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by- the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity. The
Company does not recognize the contingent asset in its Restated financial statements since this may result in the
recognition of income that may never be realised. Where an inflow of economic benefits are probable, the Company
disclose a brief description of the nature of contingent assets at the end of the reporting period. However, when the
realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and the Company recognize
such assets.
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(n Government grants

Government grants are not recognized until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the
conditions attached to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognizing in the statement of profit and loss on a systematic basis over the years in which
the Company recognizes as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate or when
performance obligations are met.

Government grants and subsidies whose primary condition is that the Company should purchase, construct or
otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognized as deferred revenue in the balance sheet which is disclosed as
deferred government grant receivable and transferred to the Statement of profit and loss on a systematic basis over
the expected useful life of the related assets.

Government grants and subsidies related to the income are deferred which is disclosed as deferred revenue arising
from government grant in the balance sheet and recognised in the statement of profit and loss as income on a
systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

(m) Other income

Interest income is recognised, when no significant uncertainty as to measurability or collectability exists, on a time
proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable interest rate, using the effective
interest rate method (EIR).

(n) Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

» |nthe principal market for the asset or liability, or

» |nthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within

the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement as a whole:

= |evel 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

= Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is directly or indirectly observable

= Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarizes accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant
notes.

= Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions
= Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy

* |nvestment in unquoted equity shares

"  Property, plant and equipment under revaluation model

= Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost)

(o) Operating segments

The Board of Directors is the Company’s ‘Chief Operating Decision Maker’ or ‘CODM’ within the meaning of Ind AS
108 ‘Operating Segments’. CODM monitors the operating results of its business segments separately for the purpose
of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based
on profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the financial statements.

(p) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand, and short-term deposits with an

original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.
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(q) Statement of cashflows
Statement of Cash flows is prepared as per indirect method prescribed in the Ind AS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows’.

For the purpose of the Restated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and as defined
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts are considered, as they are an integral part of the Company’s cash
management.

(r) Earnings per share

Basic and diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

23 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(a) New and amended standards

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023
dated 31 March 2023 to amend the following Ind AS which are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
April 2023. The Company applied for the first-time these amendments.

(i) Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies
and the correction of errors. It has also been clarified how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop
accounting estimates.

The amendments had no impact on the Company’s Restated financial statements.

(ii) Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS 1

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the
requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their ‘material’
accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about

accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments have had an impact on the Company’s disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the
measurement, recognition or presentation of any items in the Company’s financial statements.

(iii) Deferred tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction - Amendments to Ind AS 12

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no longer applies to
transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences such as leases.
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The Company previously recognized for deferred tax on leases on a net basis. As a result of these amendments, the
Company has recognized a separate deferred tax asset in relation to its lease liabilities and a deferred tax liability in
relation to its right-of-use assets. Since, these balances qualify for offset as per the requirements of of Ind AS 12, there
is no impact in the balance sheet.

(b) Standards and amendments issued
(i) Ind AS 117 — Insurance contracts

On August 12, 2024, MCA announced the amendments to the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
applicable from August 12, 2024, as below:

The amendment outlines scenarios where Ind AS 117 does not apply. These include warranties from manufacturers,
dealers, or retailers related to goods or services and employer obligations from employee benefit plans. It also
excludes retirement benefit obligations from defined benefit plans and contractual rights or obligations tied to future
use of non-financial items, such as certain license fees and variable lease payments.

However, the Company is not engaged in insurance contracts, hence do not have any impact on the financial
statements.

(i) Accounting for sale and leaseback transaction the books of seller — lessee — Amendments to Ind AS 116

On September 09, 2024, MCA announced the amendments to the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, applicable from September 09, 2024, as below:

The amendment require seller-lessee shall determine 'lease payments' or 'revised lease payments' in a way that the
seller-lessee would not recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use retained by the seller-
lessee. These rules aim to streamline accounting processes and ensure compliance with the updated Ind AS
requirements.

However, the Company is not engaged in sale and lease back transactions, hence do not have any impact on the
financial statements.
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3 Property, plant and equipment

- Computers and 5
parkiculacs Freehold land  Buildings PEam.and Furrf-lurz and GCffice dita provessing Eab-uralnry EIPffric Leasehold Total
Machinery fixturas equipment s Equipments fittings Improvemerits
Gross carrying amaount
As at April 8, 2023 - - - - - - - - - -

Additions 2837 1829 457.07 = 7.00 2.67 - 4242 - 620 R)

Disposals of 25ets during the period - + - - - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2024 26.37 78.29 457.07 # 7.00 2.67 - 49.42 -

Additions - 9.4) 98.51 232 3.5 10862 1.07 79.29 m42

Capitalized duiing the period - 2675 §73.12 - - - - -

Regrouping adjustments - -~ - 2 - (1.74) - - -

Disposals of zssets during the pe - - - - - - - - -
As at Decamber 31, 2024 26.37 114.94 1,529.10 2.32 10.95 11.55 1.07 128.71 20.42 1,845.43
Accumuiated depreciation
As at April 8, 2023 - - - - - - - - - -

Charge for the perod - 008 058 - 003 001 2 009 - 078

Dicperals of 300ets during the period = - = - - = = - -
As at March 31, 2024 - 058 - 0.03 0.01 - 0.0% - 0.76

Chaige for the perind - 72.35 009 132 1.41 012 4.07 006 821.48

Regrouping adiustments - - - - B (001) - - {0 a1)

Disgotale of ausets during the pe - - - - i - - - - -
As at December 31, 2024 - 2.11 72.93 0.09 1.35 1.41 0.12 4.16 0.06 £2.23
As at December 31, 2024 26.37 112.83 1,456.17 223 8.60 10.14 0.95 124.55 20.36 1,763.20
As at March 31, 2024 26.37 78.24 458.49 . 6.97 2.66 - 49.33 - 6520.06
Notes:

a. The Company hascapitatized the new manufacturing plant and machingry under property, plant, and squipment (PPE), financed through loans that meets the eriteria for qualifying 2ssels in 2«
024 - INR 4,38 milliuns [March 31, 2024, was INR 6.8 millions) . The rate use
¢, which represents the effective interest rate of the specific bormowing and 2.32% for general borrowing.

23. The amount of borrawing ==z capitalized for the peiiod anded Decembar 31,

capitalizalion waz 3.1

b. All of the Company's property, plant, and equipmeant is subject to pledged Icharges) to 2acure the bank loacs {refer note 35)

iprosant®.

¢. There is no such property whersin there is an issue with the title, presentad under " property plant and &

d. Refer nate 36 for disclosure of contractual commitenents for the 2 ion of property, plant and squipment.

(This paz= hat hesn left ini=ationally blank)

o deteimine the borowing ©

Jance with Ind AS

*1 aligible fur




Saatvik Solar Industries Private Limited (formerly known as S Cleantach Renewable Private Limited)
CIN : U43222CH2023PTC044976

Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Interim Financial Statements for period ended December 31, 2024
(All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

4

Intangible assets

Particulars

Software

Total

Gross carrying amount
As at April 8, 2023

Additions

Disposals/adjustments of assets during the period
As at March 31, 2024

Additions

Regrouping adjustments

Disposals/adjustments of assets during the period
As at December 31, 2024

Accumulated amortization
As at April 8, 2023

Charge for the period

Disposals/adjustments of assets during the period
As at March 31, 2024

Charge for the period

Regrouping adjustments

Dispasals/adjustments of assets during the period
As at December 31, 2024

Net carrying amount
As at December 31, 2024
As at March 31, 2024

(This page has been left intentionally blank)




Saatvik Solar Industries Private Limited (formerly known as § Cleantech Renewable Private Limited)

CIN : U43222CH2023PTC044976

Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Interim Financial Statements for period ended December 31, 2024
(All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

5 Capital work in progress (CWIP)

a. Particulars Total

As at April 8, 2023 -

Additions 31631
Capitalized during the period -
As at March 31, 2024 316.31
Additions 1,042.11
Capitalized during the period (999.88)
As at December 31, 2024 358.54

—

b. CWIP ageing schedule

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Particulars More than
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Total
3 years

Projects in progress

As at Decemnber 31, 2024 358.54 - - - 358.54
As at March 31, 2024 316.31 - - - 316.31
Note:

i. There is no project whase completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan during the period ended December 31, 2024 and
period ended - March 31, 2024,

ii. All CWIP projects are running as per schedule and no project has been suspended during the period ended December 31, 2024 and period ended March
31, 2024,

iii. CWIP camprises of solar module manufacturing lines being constructed in India.

(This page has been left intentionally blank)
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Saatvik Solar Industries Private Limited {formerly known as § Cleantach Renewable Private Limitad)

CIN : U43222CH2023PTCD44975

Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Interim Financial Statements for period ended December 31, 2024
(All amaunts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

6 Leases

a. Carrying value of Right-of-use assets and movement thereof during the period:

Particulars Building Total
Grass Carrying Amount
As at April 8, 2023 - -
Additions - =
Disposals/adinstmants of 21sets during the period - -
As at March 31, 2024 & -
Additions 174.93 174.83
Gisposalsfadiustments of 30sets during the period 1.10 1.10
As at December 31, 2024 176.03 176.03
Accumulated depreciation
As at April 8, 2023 - -
Charge for the peiiod - -
Disposale/adjustments of 352005 during Lhe perivd - -
As at March 31, 2024 n -
Charge for the period 2041 2041
Disposals/adjusments of 3zzats during the period 0.48 0.48
As at December 31, 2024 20.89 2039
Net carrying amount
As at December 31, 2024 155.14 155.14
As at March 31, 2024 - -
b. Carrying value of lease liability and movement thereof during the period:
Particulars Asat Asat
December 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
Opening balance - ]
Additian during the perod 173.19 -
Aceration of Interest 880 g
Adjustment during the period 1.10
Payments of leszz liabilities (22.36) -
Closing balance 160.73 -
Particul As at As at
e December 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
Currenit Leasa liability 28.92 -
Nen-Current Leasz liability 13181 =
Total 160.73 -
¢. Caontractual maturities of lease liabilities as at December 31, 2024 and March 31, 2024:
Particulars As at As at

December 31, 2024

March 31, 2024

Not later than one year

Latar than one year and not later than five years
Later than five years

Total

d. Expenses recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss for:

41,96
152.94

194.90

For period ended

For the period from

Particulars April 08, 2023 to
December 31, 2024
& * December 31, 2023
Depraciation expense on right-of-use asiet 2089 -
Interest aapense on leasz liabilities 8 30 -
Expensas relaling to short teem lessss 0.22
Total 29.91 -

e. Amounts recognized in the statement of cash flow

For period ended

For the period from

Particulars April 08, 2023 to
Di ber 31, 2024
erem December 31, 2023
Total cash outflow for leases 22.36 -
Total 22.36 -
f. Reconciliation of lease liabilitias whose cash flow movements are disclosed 23 part of financing activities in the Statement of Cash Flows:
Particulars Opening balance Cafh fows during the paricd Non Cosh flows Clasing balance
Additions Deletion Others
As at Dacember 31, 2024
Leaze liahifities - = {22.38) 183.09 18073
Total lisbilities fram financing activities - - (22.35)

As at December 31, 2023
Lease liabiiities

Chartered

Total liabilities from financing activities

Accountants




Saatvik Solar Industries Private Limited {formerly known as S Cleantach Renewable Private Limited)

CIN

: U43222CH2023PTC044976

Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Interim Financial Statements for period ended December 31, 2024
(All amounts are in INR millions, uniess otherwise stated)

7

Inventories
(Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value)

Particulars As at As at
1
: December 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
Raw materials 1819.41 60.19
(Including goods in transit for Decamber 31, 2024: INR 757.30 million, March 31, 2024: Nil)
Finished goods 575.62 353
Stock-in-Trade 10.28 -
Stores and spares 31.38 -
Total 2,436.70 63.72
Inventory has bezn pledgad against borrowings, details of which are given in asset pledzed as security note {refer note 35)
Trade receivables
Particulars Asat Asat
December 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
Trade recaivables from contract with customers — billad 816.35 3160
816.35 31.60
Less: Loss allowance - -
Total 816.35 31.60
Break-up of security details
As at As at
Particulars
December 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
Trade receivables considered good = secured - -
Trade receivables considered good —unsecured 81635 3160
Trade receivables-credit impaired = -
816.35 31.60
Less: Loss allowance % 2
Total 816.35 31.60
Notes:
1. No trade receivahies are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person.
2. Trada receivahles has been pledged against borrowings, details of which has been given in assets pledgad as security note {refer note 35)
. Trade receivables Ageing Schedule
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Not due Less than 6 months - Total
1-2ye 2-3 More than 3 years
6 Months 1 year years Ve yrar
As at December 31, 2024
a. Undisputed trade receivables
- considered good 580,99 235.36 - - - - 81635
- which have significant increasz in credit risk ) ) i ) . ) )
- credit impaired = - - - - - -
b. Disputed trade receivables
Total 5380.99 235.36 - - - - 816.35
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Not due Less than 6 months = Total
1-2 rs 2-3years  More than 3 years
6 Months 1 year ye e Y
As at March 31, 2024
a. Undisputed trade receivables
- considered good - 31.60 = - = - 31.60
- which have significant increasz in credit risk ) ) i ) ’ ) i
- credit impaired - 2 = - R B R
b. Disputed trade receivables
Total - 31.60 - - - - 31.60

Chartered

Accouniants




Saatvik Solar Industries Private Limited (formerly known as 5 Cleantech Renewable Private Limited)

CIN : U43222CH2023PTC044376

Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Interim Financial Statements for period ended December 31, 2024

(All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

9

1

o

11

Cash and cash equivalents
Particulars Asal Asat
Dacamber 31, 2024 March 31.2024
Balance with banks
-in current accounts 0.20 8.77
Cheque on hand 0.93 -
Cash on hand 0.19 004
Total 1.32 8.81
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following :-
As at As at
December 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
Balance with banks
-in current accounts 0.20 8.77
Cheque on hand 0.53 -
Cash on hand 0.19 004
1.32 8.81
Bank balances (Other than cash and cash equivalents)
Particulars Arat As at
Decamber 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
Deposits with original maturity of maore than 3 months but less than 12 months® - 6.10
- 6.10
*Bank deposits with original maturity of more than 3 manths but less than 12 months lien against Letter of Credit and bank guaranteas etc.
Other Financial assets
Particulars Asat Asat
December 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
Non-current
Security deposits {measured at amortized cost) 10.40 2985
Fixed deposits with banks* 9.84 0.05
Total 20.24 3.00
Current
Fixed deposits with banks* 158.12 4462
QOthers
- Interest accrued on bank deposits 431 063
Other Receivables** 036 -
Total 163.79 45.25
Total 184.03 48.25

*Fixed deposits with banks are lien against Lelter of Credit and bank guarantees etc,

**Includes receivables from related party (refer note 37),




Saatvik Solar Industries Private Limited (formerly known as S Cleantech Renewable Private Limited)

CIN : U43222CH2023PTCD44376

Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Interim Financial Statements for period ended December 31, 2024

(All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

12 Other assets

Particulars A Asat
! December 31, 2024 March 31, 2024

Non-Current
Capital advances 233.19 128.82
Total 233.19 128.82
Current
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Advances other than capital advances
- Advance to vendors 281.64 2506
- Advance to employee 0.12 .

- Prepaid Expenses 487 0.16
Balance with government authorities 538.91 50.05
Total 825.54 75.27
Total 1,058.73 204.09
Break up of related and other than related advance to vendors

As at As at

Particul

iculars December 31, 2024 March 31, 2024

Advance ta vendors - other than related parties 281.64 2506
Advance to vendors - related parties (refer note 37) - -
Total 281.64 25,06

(This page has been left intentionally blank)




Saatvik Solar Industries Private Limited {formerly known as § Cleantach Renewable Private Limited)

CIN : U43222CH2023PTC044976

Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Intarim Financial Statements for period ended Decamber 31, 2024 4
(All amounts are in INR millians, unless otherwise statad)

13 Equity share capital

&F

. Authorised as well as issuad share capital

Particulars No. of Shares Amount

As at April 8, 2023 10,000 0.10
Increase during the period - 3
As at March 31, 2024 10,000 0.10
Incresze during the period - .
As at December 31, 2024 10,000 0.10

Reconciiiation of the number of shares outstanding and the amaunt of Issued, subscribed and fully paid up share capital at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:

Particulars No. of Shares Amount

As at April 8, 2023 10,000 0.10
Increase/(Decrease) during the period - -
As at March 31, 2024 10,000 0.10
Increase/[Decreaze) during the period = .
As at December 31, 2024 10,000 0.10

. Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The company has only one class of squity shares having par value of Rs 10 per shars. Each holder of equity shares iz entitled 2 one vate per share.

In the event of liquidation of the campany, the holders of equity sharss will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, affer distribution of preferential amounts. The distribuetion will be in

proportion to the number of squity shares held by the shareholders.

Every halder of equity shares prasent at a mesting In person or by provy iz entitled t2 one vote, and upen 2 poll each share is entitled t2 one vote,

. Shates heid by holding company

o

-

Qut of equity and praferance sharzs issued by the company, sharas held by its halding company are as below:

As at December 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2024
Name of Shareholders No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Ampunt
Szatvik Green Energy Limited, holding company® 10,000 0.10 10,000 0.10
Total 10,000 0.10 10,000 0.10
* incudes 1 share sach held by Sunilz Garg and Manvika Garg held on behalf of 322tvik Green Energy Limited,
Details of shareholders halding mare than 5% shares in the campany

As at December 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2024
Name of Shareholders No. of Shares % Holding No. of Shares % Holding
Sazlvik Green Energy Limited* 10,0 10,000 100,00%
Total 10,000 100.00% 10,000 10000
* incudes 1 share sach held by Sunila Garg and Manvika Garg held on behalf of Saatvik Grean Energy Limited,
Details of shareholding of promoters at the beginning and at the end of the reparting period

Sromotar ame As at the begllnmng Change d.unng the No.of shares af the % of Total Shares % change fiunng the
of the period period end of the periad period

As at Decamber 31, 2024
Sastvik Green Energy Limited
Manvika Garg

Sunila Garg 3 -

Tatal 10,000 - 10,000 -
As at Change during the  No. of shares at the % change during the

1

Rrometer Nanw April 8, 2023 period end of the period Bl Total SHates period

As at March 31, 2024

Saatvik Green Energy Limitad - 98.98% 100,00

Manvika Garg 5,000 1 0.01% (99 58%)

Sunila Garg 5,000 1 0.01%

Total 10,000 = 10,000 100.00% -




Saatvik Solar Industries Private Limited {farmerly known as § Cleantech Renewable Private Limited)

CIN : U43222CH2023PT(D44476

Notes farming part of the Special Purpose Interim Financial Stataments for period ended Decamber 31, 2024
{All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise statad)

14 Other equity

il Asat Asat
Farticulars Dacamlbser 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
Retained earnings 88552 1603
Total £885.52 1693
Reconciliation of Retained earning as at Decamber 31, 2024 and March 31, 2024
Particulars Asat Avat
i

December 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning of the period 16.93 -
Profit far the period 868 59 1693
Balance at the end of the period 885.52 16.93

Nature and purpose of reserves and surplus:
Retained earnings

Retained satnings are the profits/!loss) that the Company has earned/incurrad till date, less any transfers to zeneral reserve, dividend: or other distributions paid to sharehalders, Retained earnings include ra-
B P §

measurement less / (gain) on defined benefit plans, net of Lax=s that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profitand Loss,




Saatvik Solar Indusiiies Private Limited {formerly known as S Cleantech Renewable Private Limited)

CIN : U43222CH2023PTCOA4976

Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Interim Financial Statements for period ended Decamber 31, 2024
{All amounts are in INR millions, uniess otherwise stated)

15 Borowings

Asat
December 31. 2024

Particulars

Asat
March 31, 2024

Non-Current
- Secured (amortized ¢ost]
i. Term loans

a. From bank 113838 dun 02
Total 1,188.98 49003
Less: Amount of Lern loans shown under current borrawings {87 47} (20 78)
Total 1,101.51 469.25
Current
- Unsecured (amaortized cost)

i. Loan from ralated parties

a. Dirsctors [Refer nofe 37) £ 573

b. Other relatad parties {Refar nate 37} 41728 42534
- Secured (amortized cost)

i. Working Capital lnans repayable on demand Fram bank

a. Cash credit facility B

b. Buyer credil facility -

. Working capital demand loan R

il Curtent Maturity of long term boroaings £7.47 n7e
Total 1,546.82 464,45
Total 2,648.33 93370

a. Details of Loans
As at December 31, 2024
Particulars
Terms of repayment  Loan maturity date  Coupon/ Interest rate Cairying amount
Term loans fram bank
- The Faderal Bank Limited. Tarm Loan Ouarterly install s July 23, Rego+ 2408 294.70
- HDFC Bank Limit=d, Working Capital Term Laan | Manthly installments  Newsmber 3M T- Bill 4 2,403 283 58
- 815 Bank Limited, Term Losn Ousrterly installments  January 31, 7033 Repo +25 201.35
- HDFC Bank Limited, Working Capital Term Loan 1| Manthly installments  Nowembear 7, 2032 3MT- Bill + 2 40 40525
Total 1188.98
Working Capital loans
- The Federal Bank limited, Cazh Credit Facility On demand NA Repo + 2,400
- HDFC Bank Limit=d, Cash Cradit Facility On demand NA 3MT-Bill+2
- AYIS Bank Limited, Cash Credit Facility On deenand NA Repo + 2.5 34311
«rz Bank Limited, Cash Cradil Facility On derrand NA Repo + 2.00% 106 33
- Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited, W ng Capital Demand Loan On demand NA Repo+ 2 40% 16000
Total 82403
As at March 31, 2024
Particulars ) i
Terms of repayment  Loan maturity date  Coupon/ Interest rate Carrying amount
Term loans from bank
-The Federal Bank Limited, Term Loan . 23 July 2031 Repo + 2 407 24 04
Ouarterly installments
- HDFC Bank Limited, Working Capital Term Losn ¢ 07 Nowember 3031 LIBOR +2.37% 243.59
Maonthly installmenis
Total 49003
b. The Company's bank loans are subjart t2 variaus financial covenants, including limiiations an indebt ‘debt-aquity ralin nal borowings 12 EBITDA ratie and dabt senvice age ratio. All of these coverants have been
cantistantly met, ansuring the Compary's finsncial stability and compliance with its loan sgreemenis.
c. Details of security against loans
The Federal Bank Limited
The bank loan iz secured with first pari passu cheige on 2ntire movahiz and immovable foed sssets of the company, both piessnt & future.
HDFC Bank Limited
The bank loan is secured with primary charge on all book debtc all plant and machinery and all inventaries.
Axis Bank Limited
The bank loan cured with first pari gasis charge on #ntive movahle and imeweable foed az:et and current 33 f the company, both precent & future.
Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited
First pari passu hypothecation charge on all receivablaz, current 3uets and rucvable fusd azsets, both presant & future,
d. Unsecurad loans from relatad parties
Loans fram ralated parties are unsecured and repaysble on demand cariying Inte 5 pa.
e. Break-up of aggregate secured and unsecured borrawings
Particul Asat Asat

it

articulars December 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
fagregate secured bortowings 2,231.05 4850 03
Aggregate unsecured horrowings 41728 443 87

2,648.33 933.70




Saatvik Solar Industiies Private Limited [Toimerly known as§ Claants
CIN : U43222CH2023PTC044976

Renewable Private Limited)

Notes forming part of the Special Purpose Interim Financial Statements for period anded December 31, 2024

{All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise staied)

f. Reconciliation of barrowings whose cash flow movements are discloved as part of financing artivities in the Statement of Cash Flows:

Cash fluws during the period Non Cash flows

Partirulars Opening balance Additons elation i Closing balance
As at December 31, 2024
Barrawings 23170 176259 {47.35) i 264834
Total lial es fram financing activities 93370 1,762.59 (47.95) - 2,548.34
As at December 31, 2023
Bairowings - 34133 - - 34183
Total liabilities from financing activities = 341 83 - T 341 83
16 Trade payables
As at As at

Particulars

December 31, 2024

March 31, 2024

e

Total autstanding duss of micro sntarprizes and small ente

Total outstanding dues of credit
Total
*includes pavables to relstad parties {refer note 37)

4 athar than muro saterp

bl

a. Trade

and small enterprise

104.40

104.40

Againg Schedule

Particulars

Unbhilled

Not Due

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

Total

As at December 31, 2024
a. Undisputed trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micio snterprses and simall enteipise:

Total outstanding dues of cieditars athar than micre enterprises
and small enterprises

b. Disputed trade payables

Total nutstanding dues of micro snterpriz=s and small snteipi

Total outstanding dues sf cr=ditors ather than micrs enterpr
and small enierprizes

Total

2575

18146

802.89

207.21

745 59 - - -

1,755.59

Particulars

Unbilled

Nat Due

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 1year 1-2 years 2-3 years Mare than 3 years

Total

As at March 31, 2024
a. Undisputed trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro erterpiises and small enisipriszs

Total outstanding duss of creditors ather than mices enterprises
and small enterprises
b. Disputed trade pavables

Total sutstanding dues of micro snterpises and small anterprises

Tota! autstanding dues of craditars ather than micre snteiprises
and small anteiprises
Total

17 Other financial liabilities

104 08 - - s

104.40

0.32

10408 - - e

104.40

Particulars

Asat
December 31, 2024

Asat
March 31, 2024

Cutrent

Capital creditors

Iriterest accrued but not due on barowings®
Employne payablas

Orher craditurs®

Total

*Includas pavables to ratated parties [refa

wile 37)

15534 86.75
4830 1152
.80 ooz
0.48 0.47
211.92 98.76

a. Reconciliation of borrowings whase cash flow mavements are disclosed as part of financing activities in the Statement of Cash Flows:

Cash flows during the period Non Cash flows

Particulars Opening balance Clasing balance
o s Additinns Deletion Others 8

ember 31, 2024

ccrued byt Aot due on borawings 152 - (75 25 10337 130
Total llabilifies fram financing activities 1152 5 (75.09) 10987 16.30
As at December 31, 2023
Inter=st scorued but not due on borrawings = % - 387 3867

5 3 3.67 3.67

Total liabilities fram financing acti

Chartered

Accountants




Saatuik Solar Industies Private Limited {formerly known as S Cleantech Banewable Private Limited)

CIN : U43222CH2023PTCO4A9T6
Notes forming part of the Special Purposs Interim Financial Statements for period ended Dacember 31, 2024
(All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

18 Provisions

1

2

2

©

o

B

Particular Asat Asat
i
® December 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
Non-cufrent
+ for gratuity {net] {iefar nots 38) 120 -
on for Warranty and Replacsment 1.83 -
3.03 -
cosated absencas 187
efer note 38) 0.15
2.02 -
Total 5.05 -
Maovement of provision for warranty and replacsment cost:
tod ended
Period ended £ afioc Sice

Particulars

December 31, 2024

April 08, 2023 to
March 31, 2024

Operning balance
n crest=d during the year /petiod {Refar note (i) below)

Fiow
Prawision utilized [ reversed during the year/ period

Closing balance®

* Prowivion for warranties iz ated in accosdance with the Tompany's ¢

The Company affers 2 25 year wairanly on slar photowaltaic medules, <

1.83 million (March 31, 2024: Nil). This pro

ion reflects the Comprany’s

romer satidfaction and znsures that it has

ted Lo ba peithed 22 snd when claims ars recelv

1.83

1.83

sulficient financial (o

bath performance and defects, To proactivaly address poteniial warsanty claims, the Tompany has extablished 2 warranty prov®
ware et to Fulfill its waranty obligations,

fon amounting to INR

Contract liabilities
Particulars i = Asat
December 31, 2029 March 31, 2024
Current
- Advance fram customes 72427 3
Total 72427 -
Break-up of relst=d and ather than related outstanding contract liabilities -
Particulars Asat Asat
- December 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
Coniract liabilitizs = ather than relatzd parties 72427 -
Contract liabilities — related parties (Refar nots 37) = =
Total 72427 -
Income tax (assets) / Liabilities (Net)
Particulars psat Asat
December 31, 2024 Maich 31, 2024
Current
o far i ome tax -

331 Advance income tax payment and withhohding taxes far the period (020}
Tax liability / (assets) (net) (0.20)
Other liabilitias
particul As at Asat

i

artiwtars December 31, 2024 March 31,2024
Non-current
Defarred grant liahility 206 €4 154.77
Total 246 54 164.77
Cuivent
Deferved grant liability 340 -
Statutory liabil

- TD3S Payable 484 16E
- G5T Paysble 3624 168
Providant and other funds pavsble 101 =
Total 4s.43 3.36
Total 292,03 168.13

2z bzzn left intantionally blank)
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22

23

Revenue from operations

Particulars

For period ended
December 31, 2024

For the period from
April 08, 2023 to
December 31, 2023

Sale of products (net)

- Manufactured goods 6,038 50 =
- Traded goods 58 66 -
Total 6,097.26 2

. Reconciliation of revenue recognized with the contract price is as follows:

Particulars

For period ended
December 31, 2024

For the period from
April 08, 2023 to
December 31, 2023

Contract price 6,097.26 -
Add/Less: Adjustrment for:

- Discounts and rebates 2] =
- Refund liahility - -
Revenue recognized 6,097.26 -

. Disaggregation of revenue information
The table below presents disagzregated revenues from contracts with customers which is recognized baszd on goc

°

ds transferred at a point of time by geography and

offerings of the Campany. As per the management, the below disaggregation best depicts the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of how revenues and cash flows

are affected by industry, market and other economic factors.

Particulars

For period ended
December 31, 2024

For the period from
April 08, 2023 to
December 31, 2023

i. Revenue by geography

- Domestic market 6,097.26 -
- Oversoas market - -
Total 6,097.26 -
ii. Timing of recognition of revenue
- Goods transferred at a point in time 6,097.26 -
Total 6,097.26 -
iii. Contract balances
- Receivables, which are included in 'Trade receivables’ 816.35 =
- Revenue received in advance, which are included in 'Contract Liabilities' 724.27 -
Total 1,540.62 -

Other income

For period ended

For the period from
April 08, 2023 to

Farteulars December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Income from government grant 4.52 -
Interest income on security deposits measured at amortized cost 0.14 -
Interest incame from financial

- Bank deposit 4 80 0.48
Total 9.46 0.48
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24 Cost of materials consumed

25

26

27

28

Particulars

For period ended
December 31, 2024

For the period from
April 08, 2023 to
December 31, 2023

Raw material at the beginning of the period 60.19 s
Add : Purchases 6,742.55 -
Less : Raw material at the end of the period (1,819.41) o
Total 4,983.33 -

Purchase of Stock-in-Trade

Particulars

Period ended
December 31, 2024

Period ended
December 31, 2023

Purchase of Stock-in-Trade
Total

Changes in inventories of finished goods & stock in trade

64.45

64.46

Particulars

For period ended
December 31, 2024

For the period from
April 08, 2023 to
December 31, 2023

Inventories at the beginning of the period

- Finished goads 3.53 s
3.53 4
Inventories at the end of the period
- Finished goods 57562 -
- Stock in trade 10.29
585.91 -
Total (582.38) -

Employee benefits expense

Particulars

For period ended
December 31, 2024

For the period from
April 08, 2023 to
December 31, 2023

Salaries, wages and banus 55.13 -
Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer notz 38) 2.70 -
Gratuity expense (Refer nate 38) 0.53 -
Staff welfare expensas 4.51 -
Total 63.27 =

Finance costs

Particulars

For period ended
December 31, 2024

For the period from
April 08, 2023 to
December 31, 2023

Interast expense on financial liabilities at amortized cost on

- Barrowings 109.87 6.12
- Lease liabilities 230 -
Others*

Total
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29 Depreciation and amortization expense

For the period from

. For period ended April 08, 2023 to
Particulars
December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer notz 3) 81.48 -
Amortization of intangible assets (refer note 4) 0.40 -
Depreciation on Right-of-use assats (Refer notz 6) 20.89 -
Total 102.77 -

30 Other expenses

For the period from
For period ended April 08, 2023 to

Rarieuars December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Power and fuel 83.28 -
Rental charges 0.22 -
Repairs and maintenance:

- Building 068 -

- Plant and equipment 16.66 -

- Computer 0.17 =

- Others 0.28 -
Legal and professional expensas 2.55 -
Freight & forwarding charges 6.64 -
Business pramotion 0.82 S
Manpower charges 11353 -
Payment to auditors{refer details below) 0.70 -
Insurance 3.34 0.03
Bank charges™ 9.13 0.00
Rates and taxes 4.53 0.40
Foreign exchange loss (net) 49.15 -
Warranty and replacement expense 1.83 -
Miscellaneous expensas 7.96 0.12
Total 301.47 0.55

* 0 represents amount below rounding off norm adopted by the company.

a. Details of payments to auditors
For the period from
Particulars For peried ended April 08, 2023 to
December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Payment to auditors
- Statutory audit fee 0.70 -
Total 0.70 -

(This page has been left intentionally blank)
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31

(a

(b

(c

(d)

Income tax
The major companents of income tax xpense are :

Income tax expense recognized in Statement of profit and loss

Particulars

For period ended
December 31, 2024

For the period from
April 08, 2023 to
December 31, 2023

Current income tax

Current income tax for the period

Total current tax expense

Deferred tax

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences
Total deferred tax expense

Tax expense

Income tax recognized in other comprehensive income (OC1)

Deferred tax related to items recognized in OCI during the period

165.01

165.01

16.38

16.38

181.39

Particulars

For period ended
December 31, 2024

For the period frem
April 08, 2023 to
December 31, 2023

Income tax on remeasurements of defined benefit plans

Total

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by statutory income tax rate for December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023:

003

0.03

For period ended

For the period from

Particulars April 08, 2023 to
December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Profit before tax 1,050.14 (6.19)
Tax expense at statutory income tax rate of 17.156% 18020 (1.06)
Non-deductible expenses 1.06
Tax effect of :
Tax effect on non deductible expenses 1.16 g
Tax effect on DTA on loss not recognised % a
181.36 -
Tax expense at the effective income tax rate 17.27% -
Breakup of deferred tax recognized in the Balance sheet
Particulars pzay Azat
December 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
Deferred tax assets
Deferred grant liahility 42.89 2827
Right of use asset 0986 2]
Others 186 1.98
Total deferred tax assets (A) 45.71 30.25
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment 3904 7.24
Borrowings 0.14 0.13
Total deferred tax liabilities (B) 39.18 7.37
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (A-B) 6.53 22.88

The Company offsets tax a:cets and liabiiities if and only if it has a legally enfuiceable right to set off current tax a

assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority,

=ts and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax
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32 Components of Other Comprehensive Income (O-CI)
The disageregation of changes to OCI by each type of reserve in equity is shown helow:

Particulars

For period ended

For the period from
April 08, 2023 to

D by 1, 2024

b S December 31, 2023
Reclassified to statement of profit and loss

Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans (0.19) -
Curtent and deferred tax credits and charges in respact of items recognized in other comprehensive income 0.03 -
Total (0.16) -

33 Earnings per shares (EPS)

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Campany by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding

during the period.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the periad attributable to the equity holders of the Campany by weighted average number of Equity shares
outstanding during the period plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into

equity shares. The following refiects the income and share data used in the basic and difuted EPS computations:

Particulars

For period ended

For the period from
April 08, 2023 to

Di 31, 2024

SConrie December 31, 2023
Basic and Diluted

Frofit for basic and diluted EPS being net profit attributable to equity shareholders (A) 86859 (6.19)
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic and diluted EPS (B) 10,000 10,000
Basic and diluted earnings per equity share ({A) / (B)) {(Rs.)* 8A 85383 (619.38)

* £PS for the nine manths ended December 31, 2024 and for the comparative period are not annualised.

(This page has been left intentionally blank)
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34 Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

; As at As at
Particulars
December 31, 2024 March 21, 2024
(i) Principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end
of the accounting period
-Principal amaount due to micro and small enterprises 82.05 =
-Interest due on above*® 0.32 -

(i} Amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006, along with
the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed date during each - -
accounting period

{iii) Amount of interast due and payable for the period of delay in making the payment (which have
been paid but beyond the appointed date during the period) but without adding the interest 0.71 -
specified under MSMED Act 2006,

(iv) Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting period
1.03

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succesding years, until such
date when the interest due as abave are actually paid to the small enterprises for the purpose
of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED 2006.

(v

Note:
Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information collected by the

Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors.
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35 Assets pledged as security

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings are:

Particulars Note Asat Agat
December 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
Current
(a) Inventories 7 2436.70 63.72
(b) Trade receivables 8 816.35 31.60
(c) Cash and cash equivalents 9 1.32 8.81
(d) Bank balances (Other than cash and cash equivalents) 10 - 6.10
(e) Other financial assets 11 163.79 45,25
Total current assets pledged as security 3,418.16 155.48
Non-current
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3
i. Freehold land 26.37 26.37
ii. Buildings 112.83 78.24
iii. Plantand Machinery 1456.17 456.49
iv. Others 167.83 58.96
(b) Intangibles assets 4 1.34 -
(c) Capital work in progress 5 358.54 316.31
Total non-current assets pledged as security 2,123.08 936.37
Total assets pledged as security 5,541.24 1,091.85

(This page has been left intentionally blank)
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36 Contingent liahilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for):

Particulars Asat o
December 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
(a) Contingent Liahilities
I Guarantess sxcluding financial guarantess 127.03 =
Total {a) 127.03 -
Cammitments
i. Estimatad amaount of contracts remaining to be 2vecuted an capital account and not provided for [net of advan. 43014 4201
ii. Othar cammitments {if any)
- Export ahligations in relation to EPOS Benefils aue &4
Total 1,918.78 1,030.65

a. The Company had commitments 35 2t December 31, 2034 of INR 530.14 millions net of advances of INR 183 45 millions | March 31, 2024 INR 42.91 million net of advances of INR 35 22 million) for the
compistion of the building and plant and machinery.

37 Related Party Disclosures
(a) List of related partias

i»  Holding company

Saatvik Green Ensigy Limited {formerly known as Sastvik Green Energy Private Linviled)

ii. Fellow Subsidiaries
Saatvik Cleantech EPC Private
Saatvik Green USA Inc.

=d (Tormeily koown as § Cleantach Power Private Limitad)

u lar Eneigy Piajsct One Private Limited w.e.fAugust 18, 2023 till September 26, 2024
Ultravibrant Solar Energy Froject Two Private Limitsd w.e.fSeptember 08, 2023 ll September 26, 2024
tockwell Alwar Two Private Limnited w.e.f Aug Il October 01, 2024

Saatvik Vision Venture Private Limited w.efApril 25, 2024 till September 12, 2034

iii. Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

Names Designation
Mr. Manik Garg Director
Mr. Neelash Garg Diractor

iv. Relatives of Key Managerial Fersonnel (KMP) and Directars
Mrs. Sunila Garg
Mr. Paimad Kumar
Mrs. Manavika Garg

v. Entities controlled or significantly influenced by KMP, Directars or relatives of KMP and Directors
Parmod Kumar HUF
Manik Garg (HUF)
Neelash Garg (HUF)
S.P Haldings
SolarS1 Froject Two Private Limited

UV Salar Energy Praject One Private Limited w.e.f Septamber 26, 2024
Ultravibrant Selar Energy Project Two Private Limited w.e.f September 26, 2024
Stockwall Alwar Two Private Limitad w.efOctober 01, 4

Saatyik Vision Venture Private Limited w.e.fSeplember 12, 2024

vi. Entities controlled or significantly influenced by KMP of holding company
SolarSl Pruject Two Private Limited wefDctaber 1, 2024

Chariered

Accounianis
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(b) Transactions with related parties

For period ended For the period from
Particulars Relationship i £ it mpont April 08,2023 to
Din— December 31, 2023
i. Saleof goods*
Saatvik Green Energy Limited smipany 4,78 59 s
Solair9l Froject Two Private Limited ntralted or significantly influsnced by KMP of | 7685 -
*Sale amount s after excluding 35T,
fi. Purchase of goods *
Sastvik Gresn Energy Limiled Holding company 343598 -
*Purchasz amount is after excluding 55T,
iii. Reimbursements
Manik Garg (HUF) Entitiez ~ontrolled or significantly influenced by KMP, Directors ar relatives of
KMP and Directors - 0.26
iv. Interest expense on loan
Mr. Manik Garg 0.14 0.19
Mr. Neetash Garg 0.0 017
Mrs, Sunila Gerg 034 048
Mr. Pair Kumar Relstives of KMP 011 023
Paimaod Kumar HUF Entities ~ontralled or significantly influenced by KMP, Director: of relativas of oog
KB and Divsctors 0.06 g
Mrs. Maravika Gaig Relatives of KMP 10 014
Manik Garg (HUF) Entitiaz A‘ led ar significantly influenced by KMP, Directors or relativas of oida 007
KNP and Directors
Neelssh Garg [HUF) Eustities ¢ dled or significantly influenced by XMP, Ditectors or relatives of 0.04 005
KMP and Directors
Sastvik Green Energy Limited Holding company 2819 227
v. Loan and advances taken
Mr. Manik Garg - 373
Mr. Neelesh Garg = 3.00
Mrs. Sunila Garg - 9.25
Mr. Paiod Kumar - 410
ar significantly influence f KMP, Directars aor relative
Batemod Kumar HUE ar significantly influenced by Dir rrelatives of )
Mrs. Manavika Garg - 273
i wntralled or significantly influsnc=d by KMP, Dicectors or relativer of
Manik Garg (HUF) KMP 3nd Dire-tors B 1.08
Entities 2uot olled o significantly influsnced by KMP, Dit=c !0t or relativas of
arg {HUF ]
Neelesh Garg | ] KMP and Dire-toes } 100
Saatvik Green Energy Limited Halding sompany 3 1en 41
vi. Loan and advances repaid
Mr. Manik Garg KMP 9.25 -
Mr. Neelesh Garg KMP 273 -
Mrs. Sunila Gaig Relalivas of KMP 3.73 -
Mr. Parmod Kumar Relativas of KMP 300 -
Entitizz zontrolled ar significantly influenced by KMP, Directors or relalives af
wad K d
Parimod Kumar HUF KMP and Dire 5 410
’ Entitizs sontrollad or significantly influenced by KMP, DI rz or relatives of
Mrs. Manavika Garg KMP and Directars 1.50 -
Entitisz convalied ar significantly influenced by KMP, Dir=ctors or rejativas of
ik . o -
Manik Garg (HUF) Eiipaid Birecton 108
Entities sontralled or significantly influenced by KMP, Dirscto:z orrelativas of
P fal -
Neaslesh Garz {(HUF) KMP snd Directors 1.00
Sastvik Graen Energy Lirmted Halding comaany - 250
vii. Purchase of assat
. Entitias contolled ar significantly infltienc=d by KMP, Dire 1o or relatives of
. - 20
$:P Holdings KMP 3nd Diretars 2084
ntities cantrolled ar sigoificantly influenced by KMP, Director2 of relstives
Saatvik Cleantech ERC Private Limited E alled ar significantly influencsd by KMP, Di ar relabi of 542 i

KMP 3nd Dirsctors
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(b) Outstanding balances with related parties

v,

vi

vii.

(d]

Particuiars

Relationship

As at
December 31, 2024

Asat
March 31, 2024

Loan and advances taken
Mr. Manik Garg

Mr. Neelesh Garg

Mrs. Sunila Garg

Mr. Parmod Kumar

Parmaod Kumar HUF
Mrs. Manavika Garg

Manik Garg {HLIF)

Meelesh Garg (HUF)

Saatvik Green Energy Limited

Interast payable on loan
Mr. Manik Garg

Mr, Neelesh Garg

Mrs. Sunila Garg

Mr. Parn
Parinod Kumar HUF

o Kumar

Mrs. Manavika Garg
Manik Garg [HUF)

Neelesh Garg [HUF)

Saatvik Grean Energy Li
Trade payable

Ssatvik Green Eneigy Limited
Other creditors

Suatvik Green Enecgy Limited
Mr. Manik Garg

Other receivables

Saatvik Green Energy Limited

Loan and advances repaid
Saatvik Green Energy Limited

Purchase of asset

SP Holdings

Terms and Conditions

All transa-tions with related parties arz made on terms aquivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions and within the ordinary

of KMP

Entitias controlied or significantly influenced by KMP, Divsstors or relalives of
KMP and Directars

Relatives of KMP

Entitiez contralled or significantly influenced by KMP, Divectort or relativas of
KMP and Dires

tars

Enititias ¢ = d or significantly inflirencad by KMP, Divect

2 o1 of relativas of
KMP and Directors

Holding company

Relativaz of KMP

Entitizz zontrolled or significantly influsnced by KMP, Directors o relalives of
KMP and Dire.
Relativas of KMP

Entitiez =antralled or significantly influenced by KMP, Directors o relatives of
KMP and Directors

Entitizs =ont alled or significantly influenced by KMP, Directar: or relatives of
KMP and Directors

Helding company

Hilding company

Holding =

any

Kmp

Helding company

Halding Comipany

Entitias controlled or significantly influsnced by KMP, Directors or retatives of
KMP and Directars

009

004

no3

3377

038

3.73
200
9.25
4.10
150

273

102

20 74
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38 Employee benefits

A. Defined contribution plans

The Campany makes contribution to Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance Fund and Labour Welfare Fund which is defined contribution plan, for qualifying
employess. Under this scheme, the Company is requirad to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The Company's contribution
to the Employee Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance Fund is deposited with the Provident Fund Commissioner which is recognized by Incame Tax
authorities.

Contribution to Defined Contribution Plans, recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss, for the year is as under :-

For period entlad For the period from

Particulars April 08,2023 to
December 31, 2024 i
y20 December 31, 2023
Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund ' 2.62 -
Employer's Contribution to Employees State Insurance Fund 001 -
Employer's Contribution to labour Welfare Fund 0.07 -
Total contribution to Defined Contribution Plans 2.70 -

. Compensated absences - other long term employee benefit plan

The employees of the Company are entitled to compensaled absences which are both accumulating and non accumulating in nature. The employees can carry
forward up to the specified portion of the unutilized accumulated compensated absances and utilize it in future periods or receive cash at retirement or termination
of employment. The expected cost of accumulating compensatad absences is determined by actuarial valuation (using the projected unit credit method) based on
the additional amount expected to be pald as a result of the unutiiized entitlement that has accumulated at the balance sheat date. Actuarial gains/losses are
immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss.

. Define Benefit Plans
Gratuity
The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1572, The plan provides for lump sum payment to vestad employees at retirement, death while in
employment or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days basic saiary payable for each completed year of service or part thereof in excess

of 6 months with nio ceiling limit on the amount, Vesting occurs open completion of 1 year of service,

The present value of the defined benefit ohligation and the related current service cost were measured using the projected unit credit method with actuarial
valuations being carried out at each reparting dale,

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognized in the Statement of profit and loss.

Gratuity - defined benefit plan

n z
Rk pariod erided For the period from

Particulars April 08, 2023 to
D 4
ecember3d, 202 December 31, 2023
Present value of un-funded defined benefit obligation 1.35 -
Total 1.35 -

‘i, The movement in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation for Gratuity

For the period from
April 08, 2023 to
December 31, 2023

For period ended

Particulars
e December 31, 2024

Liability at the beginning of the period = =
Acruisition adjustment 0.22 s
Current service cost 0.94 -
Interest cost = 5
Benefits paid - B
Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain) / loss arising from:

- changes in demagraphic assumption - y
- changes in financial assumption - -
- changes in experience adjustment {i.e. Actual experienca vs assumptions) 0.19 -

Total

1.35 -
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ii. The amount recognized in statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income:

For period ended

For the period from

Particulars April 08,2023 to
December 31,
s 12028 ember31,2023
Current service cost 0.94 -
Past service cost & 4
Interest cost/ {Income) 2 -
Total 0.94 -
A For the period from
For period ended
Particulars Dece':n;;r 31 2004 April 08, 2023 to
i December 31, 2023
Actuarial gain on defined benefit obligation -
-changes in demographic assumplion - -
- changes in financial assumption & "
- changes in exparience adjustment (i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions) 0.18 -
Total amount recognized in other comprehensive income 0.19 -

The mast recent actuarial valuations of the present value of the defined benefit liability were carried out at December 31, 2024. The present value of the defined
benefit liahility, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit methaod.

jec

jii. The principal assumption used for the purpose of actuarial valuation are as follows:

For period ended

For the period from

Particulars April 08,2023 to
b ‘
Dieecmaerad, S0 December 31, 2023
Discount rate 6.96% -
Expected rate of salary increase 10.00% -
Retirement age 58 -
Attrition / Withdrawal rate 17.00% -

Mortality table

100% of IALM (2012 -

14)

The Company regularly assesses these assumptions with the projected long-term plans and prevalent industry standards.

iv. Sensitivity analysis

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the definad benefil obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality. The sensitivity
znalysis below have been determined haszd on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while hoiding all

other assumptions constant. The results of sensitivity analysis Is given below:

Particulars Increase Decrease

For period ended December 31, 2024

Impact of change in discount rate by 0.5% (0.04) 0.04
Impact of change in salary by 0.5% 0.04 (0.04)

For the period from April 08, 2023 to December 31, 2023
Impact of change in discount rate by 1%
Impact of change in salary by 1%
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v. The plan typically exposes the Company to actuarial risks such as: interest rate, longevity risk and salary risk.

Vi

Interest rate risk

Adecrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liabiiity.

Longevity risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liabifity is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and after their
employment. An increzse in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

Salary risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liabifity is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants, As such, an increasz in the saiary of the
plan participants will increase the plan’s liahility.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile and duration of the defined benefit obligation:

jod fi
For period ended For the period from

Particulars April 08, 2023 to
December 31, 2024 Defemher 31,2023
Oto 1years 0.14 -
1to 2 years 0.20 -
2to 3 years 0.17 -
3to4years 0.14 -
410 5 years 0.12 -
5 to 6 years 0.10 -
6 years onwards 0.48 -
Total expected payments 1.35 -
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39 Fair valug measurements

A. Category wise details as to carrying value, fair value and the level of fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company's financial instruments are as follows:

Carrying amount Fair value

As at December 31, 2024 Amartized

FVTPL FVTOC Cost Total Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Trade recsivables [Refer notz 8) - - 8i8135 81635 - - 81535 B16.35
Cash and cash equivalents (Refer notz 3) - & 132 132 & - 132 132
Cither financial 2ssets (Refer nots 11) - = 163.79 163.79 - - 163.79 163.79
Total - - 981.46 981.46 - = 981.46 931 46
Financial liabilities
Borrowings (Refer note 15) - - 254833 264233 - - 2,648.33
Leasa liabilities {Refer note 6) - - 15073 160.73 - - 16073
Trade payablas (Refer note 16) < . 1,755.59 1,755.59 . . 1,735.59 1,755.59
Gther financial liabilities (Refer notz 17) - - 211.92 211.92 - - 21192 211.92
Total - = 4,776.57 4,776.57 - = 4,776.57 4,775.57

Carrying amount Fair value

As at March 31, 2024 Amartized

FVTPL FVTOCI Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Trade receivablas (Refer note 8) - = 31.60 31.60 - - 31:60 31.60
Cash and cash aquivalents (Refer note 9) - - §.81 281 - - 8.81 8.81
Bank balances {Tiher than cash and cash equivalents) {(Refer note 10) - - 6.10 6.10 - - 6.10 6.10
Other financial assats (Refer niote 11) - - 2.99 2.99 - = 2.99 2.99
Total S = 49.50 49.50 - - 49.49 42.49
Financial liabilities
Borrowings (Refer note 15) - - 83z 70 93370 - - 933.70 933.70
Trade payables (Refer nots 16) - E 104,40 104.40 - 2 104.40 104.40
Other financial liabilities (Refer note 17) - - 98.75 98.76 - - 92.75 98.76
Tatal - - 1,136.86 1,136.86 - - 1,136.86 1,136.86

B. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values

1) The carrying value of trade recaivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade payables, borrowings, other financial assets and other financial liabilitias measured at amoertized cost spprasimatas to their fair value due
to the shart-term maturities of thesz instruments,

2) The fair value of nan-current financial 2::et: and financial lishilitizs measured are determined by discsunting futurs cash Rows using eurrent rates of instrumants with similar terms and credit risk. The current
rates used doss not reflect significant changes fram the discount rates used initially. Theiefare, the carrying value of these instruments measured atamartizad cost approaimates to their fair value.

0

The foliowing is the basis of categorizing the financial instruments measurzd at fair value into Level 1 to Lavel 3:

Level 1: This level includas financial assets and liabiiitias that are messured by refersnce to quotad prices (unadjustad) in active markets for identical 1oets or liabilities,

Level 2: This level includas financia! as:ets and liabiiitizs, maasured using inputs ther than queted pricss included within Leval 1 that are obiervahle for the 2ot or liability, either directly (2., as pricas) or
indiractly (i.e., derived from prices).

Lavel 3: This level includes financial 31:2ts and liabilities measurad using inputs that are not bared on chiervable markeL data (uncbisrvsble inputs), Fair values sre defermined in whole or in part, using 2 valuation

biaryable current markst transactiong in the same instrument nor are they bared on available market data.

model bated on assumptions that are neither supported by price:
D. There were no transfers between any levels for fair value measurements.
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40 Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the
equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximize the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the
financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital
plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents, excluding
discontinued operations.

Particulars Asat Asat
December 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
Borrowings (refer Note 15) 2,648.33 933.70
Lease liabilities (Refer note 6) 160.73 -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (refer Note 9) (1.32) (8.81)
Net Debt 2,807.74 924.89
Equity share capital (refer Note 13) 0.10 0.10
Other equity (refer Note 14) 885.52 16.93
Total Capital 885.62 17.03
Capital and net debt 3,693.36 941.92
Capital gearing ratio 76.02% 98.19%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial
covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the
financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial

covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period
(This page has been left intentionally blank)
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41 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The company's management monitors and manages key financial risk relating to the operations of the Company by znalyzing exposures by degree &
magnitude of risk. The risks include market risk (including interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Company’s board of directors have the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Campany's risk management framework. The
Company’s risk management policies are establishad to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk mitigation measures to
monitor risks and adherence to those measures. Risk management policies and systams are reviewed regularly to refiect changeas in market conditions and
the Company's activities.

. Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments
affected by market risk include loans, borrowings and degosits,

. Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company is
exposed to interest rate risk through the impact of rate changes on floating interest-bearing borrowings. The Company manages its interest rate risk by
maonitoring the movements in the market interest rates closaly.

The sensitivity analysis have been carried out basad on the exposure to interest rates for instrumients not hedged against interest rate fluctuations at the
end of the reporting periods. The said analysis has been carried on the amount of floating rate long term borrowings outstanding at the end of the
reporting period.

Floating rate Borrowings Fixed rate Borrowings
Particulars Total Borrowings Non - current Current Non - current Current
As at December 31, 2024 2,642.33 1,101.51 811.49 - 735.33
As at March 31, 2024 933.70 469,25 20.78 - 443 67

A 100 basis point increase or decrease represents the management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

Particulars Increase or decrease Impact on profit after tax
in basis points For the period ended December 31, 2024
Floating rate long term borrowings +100 (19.13)
-100 19.13

A 100 basis point increase or decrease represents the management's assessment of the reasonably pessible change in interest rates.

Increase or decrease Impact on profit after tax
Particulars in basis points For the period ended April 8, 2023 to March,
2024
Floating rate long term borrowings +100 (4.90)
-100 4.90

Note
Interest rate sensitivity has been calculated assuming the barrowings outstanding at the reporting date have bean outstanding for the entire reporting
year.
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ii. Foreign Currency Risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an expasure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's operating activities (when revenue or 2xpense is
denominated in a foreign currency).

(a) The Company’s foreign currency exposure on account of foreign currency denominated payables & other assets not hedged is as follows:

As at December 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2024
Particulars F i i
Amount (INR) Amoun.t{. orex) in Amount (INR) Arnoun.t [.Forex) in
millions millions
Payables - USD 25823 303 60.05 0.72
Sensitivity Analysis
Total Exposure to the  Impact on profit Total Exposure to Impact on profit
company before tax the company before tax
Particulars For the peri
e As at Period ended As at ar thegerind encied

i h
December31,2024 December31,2024  March 31,2024 P8 2023 toMard

31, 2024
Payable
Increase by 1% in forex rate 261.41 (2.59) 60.65 (0.60)
Decrease by 1% in forex rate 256.24 2.59 59.45 0.60

B. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The
Company is exposad to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables), including deposits (if any) with banks and other financial assets,
Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit risk exposure. There is no significant concentration of credit risk.

. Trade receivables
The Company is exposad to credit risk in the event of non-payment by trade partners. Receivable credit risk is managed subject to the Company's
establishad policy, procedures and control relating to trade partner's risk management. The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment
loss allowance on partfolio of its trade receivables through a lifetime expected credit loss. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default
rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjustad for forward-looking estimates.

The Company always measures the loss allowance for trade receivables at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit loss (ECL). The Company has used a
practical expedient by computing the expected credit less allowance for trade receivabies basad on a provision matrix under simplified approach. The
provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information. The expected credit loss allowance is
based on the ageing of the days the receivables are due. Based on internal assessment which is driven by the historical experience and current facts
available in relation to default and delays in collection thereof, the credit risk for these trade receivables is considered low.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets. The Company does not hold collateral as
SEecurity.

ii. Cash and cash equivalents and term deposits
The company maintains its cash and cash equivalents and term depasits (if any) with reputed banks. The credit risk on these instruments is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assignad by international credit rating agencies.
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iii. Security deposits
The company monitors the credit rating of the counterparties on regular basis. These instruments carry very minimal credit risk basad on the financial
position of parties and campany 's historical experience of dealing with the parties, The Company determines the loss allowance on sacurity deposits using
estimalas based on historical cradit loss experience as per the past due status of the counter parties, adjusted as appropriate to reflect current conditions
and estimates of future econaomic conditions.

C. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial zsset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity
to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and streszad conditions, without incurring unacceptable lesses or risking damage to the
Company’s reputafion.

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, who has established an appropriate liquidity risk management
framework for the management of the Company’s short-term, medium-term and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The
Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate funds through equity infusion and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and

Maturities of financial liabilities
The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities:
The contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the Company may be required to pay.

Particulars Carrying Value Less than 1 year 1-5 years More than 5 years Total
As at December 31, 2024
Barrowings 2,648.33 164284 997.44 41878 3,065.06
Lease liahility 160.73 41.96 152.94 - 194.90
Trade payables 1,755.58 1,755.59 - - 1,755.59
Other financial liabilities 211.92 211.92 - - 211.92
4,776.57 3,658.31 1,150.38 418.78 5,227.47
Particulars Carrying Value Less than 1 year 1-5 years More than 5 years Total
As at March 31, 2024
Barrowings 933.70 469.73 294 .87 159.85 934.45
Trade payables 104.40 104.40 - - 104.40
Other financial liabiiities 98.76 98.76 - - 98.76
1,136.86 672.89 254.87 169.85 1,137.61
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Other statutory information

Details of benami property held
No procesding has been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1523 (45 of 1383)
and the rules made thereunder,

Title deeds of Immovable Property not held in the name of the Company
There are no immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly exscuted in favour of the company) title deeds
of which are not held in the name of the company.

Wiliful defaulter
The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any lender.

Relationship with struck off companies
The Company has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956.

Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements
The Company has not enterad into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on eurrent or previous financial year.

Utilization of borrowed funds and share premium

The Campany has not advanced or lnaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any ather personis) or
entity(is), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

a. directly or indirectly fend or invest in ather persans or entities identified in any manner whatsaever by or on behalf of the Company(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

The Company has not received any fund from any person{s) or entilylis), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or
otherwisej that the Company shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like an behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

Undisclosed Income
There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recarded
in the books of account

Details of crypto currency or virtual currency
The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.

Valuation of property, plant and equipment, intangible asset and investment property
The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during the current or previous year.

Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies
There are no charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.
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xi Compliance with number of layers of companies
The Company has compiied with the relevant provisions of the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 {42 of 1299) and the Companies Act, 2013 for the above transactions
and the transactions are not violative of the Prevention of Money-Laundering Act, 2002 (15 of 2003).

Xii The Company has riot advanced any fund to intermediaries for further advancing to other person on behalf of ultimate beneficiaries for the period ended December 31, 2024,

xiii The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any ather person{s) or entity(is), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the
Intermediary shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b} provide any guarantes, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

xiv The Company have not received any fund from any persanis) or entity{is), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding {(whether recorded in writing or
otherwise) that the Company shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persans or entities identified in any manner whatsaever by or on behaif of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries} or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

43 Previous period's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspand with the current period's classification / disclosure.
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